Mr Jim Leyden
Chairman

SBDA

C/o Burtonhall Road

Sandyford Business Park

Dublin 18

19 December 2011 

Dear Jim,

I refer to your letter of 19 December 2011 in relation to the Council’s draft Budget for 2012 and in particular the fact that my report to the Elected Members recommends the adoption of the draft Budget, which makes no provision for a reduction in the Council’s ARV in 2012. I should point out that the adoption of a Budget is a reserved function of the Elected Members and it will be a matter for them to make a final decision on the matter.
The Council is very conscious of the difficulties being faced by the business sector and especially the retail sector. Indeed, increases in the Council’s ARV have generally been below inflation over recent years as the following data shows:

Comparison Between Annual Changes in

Rates (ARV) and CPI 2006 to 2012

% increase 
% increase

in ARV
in CPI


2006
+2.0%
+4.0%

2007
0.0%
+4.9%

2008
+2.0%
+4.1%

2009
+2.8%
-4.5%

2010
-2.0%
-1.0%

2011*
-2.0%
+2.6%*
2012f
0.0%
+2.0%
06 to 12f
+2.7%
+12.4%
* based on data for Jan to Nov 2011 

f forecast
Assuming no increase in the Council’s ARV in 2012 the cumulative increase in ARV over the period 2006 to 2012 will be 2.7%. This compares with an expected cumulative increase of 12.4% in the CPI over the same period. 

The primary reason why I am not recommending a further reduction in the Council’s ARV in 2012 is because of the need for make a provision of €2.2m in 2012 against expected losses as a consequence of revaluation appeals. This is in addition to the provision of €3.5m made in 2011. It is expected that the revaluation, which was intended to be ‘revenue neutral’ to the Council will end up costing the Council and benefiting commercial ratepayers in the region of €5.7m between 2011 and 2012. This is equivalent to a 6.6% reduction in the Council’s ARV in 2012. In this regard the failure of the Department to compensate the Council for the adverse impact of a deeply flawed revaluation process is very disappointing.
In addition to the need to make further provision against expected losses as a consequence of revaluation appeals the Council has had to cope with a reduction in its Local Government Fund allocation of 9.2% in 2012 and the additional pension/gratuity costs associated with staff retiring in advance of the 28 February 2012 deadline. Pensions and gratuities of staff who retire before 28 February 2012 will be based on their 2009 (pre-cut) rates of pay and accordingly a number of staff especially admin, professional and technical staff have indicated that they intend to retire early before this deadline. By end 2011, total Council employment (in whole time equivalents) will have declined by 366 or 26% from its peak of 1,416 in December 2003 with a further decline expected in early 2012. 

I should also point out that the new household charge will not benefit local authorities. The Exchequer contribution to the Local Government Fund will be replaced in 2012 by the full proceeds from the new charge, which is to be introduced from January 2012. The new charge will not result in any additional direct income stream for local authorities as the proceeds will go directly into the LGF. 
While I consider it most regrettable that I am not in a position to recommend a cut in the Council’s ARV in 2012 I am satisfied that the adverse impact on Council services of further expenditure reductions that would be required to fund even a 1% cut in the Council’s ARV in 2012 would far outweigh the benefits of that cut.

Yours sincerely

____________

Owen P Keegan

County Manager
